
 

 

 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 

 
Date:  Tuesday 5 April 2022 
Time:  2.00 pm 
Venue:  Committee Room 2, Shire Hall 

 
Membership 
Councillor Jeff Clarke (Chair) 
Councillor Jonathan Chilvers (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Richard Baxter-Payne 
Councillor Jackie D'Arcy 
Councillor Jenny Fradgley 
Councillor Dave Humphreys 
Councillor Bhagwant Singh Pandher 
Councillor Daren Pemberton 
Councillor Tim Sinclair 
Councillor Andrew Wright 
 
Items on the agenda: -  
 

1.   General 
 

 

(1) Apologies 
 

 

(2) Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 
 

 

2.   Public Speaking 
 

 

3.   On-street Parking Management - Cross Party Working Group 
Recommendations 
 

3 - 22 

Monica Fogarty 
Chief Executive 

Warwickshire County Council 
Shire Hall, Warwick 

 



 

Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
Tuesday 5 April 2022 

Page 2 
  

 

 
To download papers for this meeting scan here with your camera  

 
Disclaimers 
 
Webcasting and permission to be filmed 
Please note that this meeting will be filmed for live broadcast on the internet and can be viewed on 
line at warwickshire.public-i.tv. Generally, the public gallery is not filmed, but by entering the 
meeting room and using the public seating area you are consenting to being filmed. All recording 
will be undertaken in accordance with the Council's Standing Orders. 
 
Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 
Members are required to register their disclosable pecuniary interests within 28 days of their 
election of appointment to the Council.  Any changes to matters registered or new matters that 
require to be registered must be notified to the Monitoring Officer as soon as practicable after they 
arise. 
 
A member attending a meeting where a matter arises in which they have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest must (unless they have a dispensation):  
 

• Declare the interest if they have not already registered it  
• Not participate in any discussion or vote  
• Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with  
• Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 

the meeting  
 
Non-pecuniary interests relevant to the agenda should be declared at the commencement of the 
meeting. 
 
The public reports referred to are available on the Warwickshire Web 
https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1  
 
Public Speaking 
Any member of the public who is resident or working in Warwickshire, or who is in receipt of 
services from the Council, may speak at the meeting for up to three minutes on any matter within 
the remit of the Committee. This can be in the form of a statement or a question. If you wish to 
speak please notify Democratic Services in writing at least two working days before the meeting. 
You should give your name and address and the subject upon which you wish to speak. Full details 
of the public speaking scheme are set out in the Council’s Standing Orders.  
 
COVID-19 Pandemic 
Any member or officer of the Council or any person attending this meeting must inform Democratic 
Services if within a week of the meeting they discover they have COVID-19 or have been in close 
proximity to anyone found to have COVID-19. 
 

 

https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


 

OFFICIAL  

Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

5 April 2022 
  

Call-in – On Street Parking Management Task and Finish Group 
Recommendations 

  

Recommendations 

That Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee consider the call-in request.  

 

1.   Key Issues/Background 
1.1. On 10 March 2022, Cabinet considered the recommendations made by the 

On-Street Parking Management Task and Finish Group.  A copy of the 
report to Cabinet is attached as Appendix 1. 
 

1.2. The minutes of the Cabinet meeting are attached as Appendix 2. Cabinet 
resolved: 

 

That Cabinet: 
1.   Endorses the recommendations made by the Cross-Party Working 

Group in sections 2 and 3 of the report, but with the discount for electric 
vehicles extended to hybrid vehicles, and authorises the Strategic 
Director for Communities to advertise variations to the on-street parking 
orders pursuant to sections 45 and 46 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984 giving effect to the changes to the residents’ and guesthouses’ 
permit structure and charges so recommended; 

2.   Requests a further report following statutory consultation advising on the 
issues raised in the debate, any objections or comments received, any 
proposed modifications, and on an appropriate timescale for 
implementation of any variations, including the proposal to defer 
implementation for 12 months. 

 
1.3. Following the publication of the decision it was called-in by Councillors 

Sarah Feeney, John Holland, Barbara Brown and Sarah Millar. The 
reasons for the call-in were given as: 

 

1.3.1. That the report does not clearly breakdown how the cost can be £63 
per resident and that this was confusing because officers are 
suggesting that enforcement is not part of the £63 despite this being 
part of the report.  

1.3.2. Without the benefit of the detailed financial data, it seemed 
impossible that the scheme costs £850,000 to administer.  

1.3.3. The report suggests a decrease in price for electric vehicles, but 
many residents cannot legally put in electric charging points. 

1.3.4. The increase in pricing takes no account of residents’ ability to pay 
ignoring the Council’s policies on tackling social inequality. 

Page 3

Page 1 of 3 Agenda Item 3



 

OFFICIAL  

1.3.5. That there are insufficient spaces for residents in some divisions to 
park in and residents feel that they are not getting the service they 
pay for meaning that a full parking survey needs to take place. 

1.3.6. The report gives no consideration to streets opting out of the parking 
zone. 

1.3.7. The electronic system will be particularly difficult for those with 
visitors to operate. 

 
1.4. A full response will be provided to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

by officers at the meeting.  
 

1.5. The following is a summary of the decision-making background which is 
covered in more detail in the Cabinet report of 10 March 2022. 

 
1.5.1. Following public consultation and consideration by Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee in January 2020, the Committee recommended 
changes to the proposed permit price rises, that the switch to digital 
virtual digital virtual permitting should proceed, and that pay and pay 
and display charges and parking suspension and dispensation 
charges should increase as proposed.  
 

1.5.2. The matter was taken to Cabinet in October 2020 and Cabinet 
resolved that the pay and display rises should go ahead as 
previously identified and that the switch to digital virtual permitting 
should also proceed. The pay and display rises and permit price 
increases were put on hold to recognise the economic impacts of the 
pandemic on businesses and individuals. Cabinet further resolved 
that a short duration cross party working group would be established 
chaired by the Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning to make 
future recommendations as to the future basis of permit pricing and 
the opportunities for parking management to promote environmental 
sustainability and the visitor and general economy.  

 
1.5.3. The report to Cabinet on 10 March 2022 which is the subject of the 

call in contained the recommendations of that Working Group. 
Although the group did not unanimously agree on the 
recommendations there was broad support for the principle of 
moving permit prices closer to break even and all recommendations 
were majority made.  
 

1.5.4. The group was comprised of five Conservative group members 
(including the Chair), one Labour group member, one Liberal 
Democrat group member and one Green group member. The group 
was supported by Transport & Policy, Legal, and the Assistant 
Director for Communities and Democratic Services. 
 

1.5.5. As confirmed in the Cabinet report, the Council has a discretion to 
raise permit charges so that the cost of the scheme breaks even. 
The proposals are in line with the policies set by Cabinet in 2007 that 
charges for residents’ permits should be based on the costs of 

Page 4

Page 2 of 3



 

OFFICIAL  

administering the scheme which is considered a lawful basis of 
charging.  
 

1.5.6. The proposals were considered at a meeting of Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 2 March 2022 and the 
comments of the committee included in the Cabinet report. 

 

1.6. The procedure for call in is set out in Standing Order 13. Having 
considered the call-in request, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may 
(i) refer the matter back to the decision maker for reconsideration setting 
out in writing the nature of its concerns or (ii) decide to take no action. 
 

1.7. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider the matter 
and decide whether to return the matter to Cabinet for reconsideration 
with an explanation of its concerns or to take no action (with or without 
comment) in which case Cabinet’s decision will be implemented with 
immediate effect. 

 

2. Environmental Implications 

  The environmental implications relating to the original decision that is the 
subject of this call in are covered in the report of 10 March 2022. 

  

 3. Financial Implications  

  The financial implications relating to the original decision that is the subject of 
this call in are covered in the report of 10 March 2022.  

 

 4.  Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Cabinet Report 

Appendix 2 - Cabinet Minutes for the Report subject to call in 

 5.  Background papers  

 5.1    Call In request 

  Name Contact Information 

Report Author Nichola Vine  nicholavine@warwickshire.gov.uk 

Assistant Director David Ayton-Hill Davidayton-hill@warwickshire.gov.uk 

Strategic Director Strategic Director for 
Communities 

markryder@warwickshire.gov.uk 

Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for 
Transport 

wallaceredford@warwickshire.gov.uk 

 

Page 5

Page 3 of 3

mailto:nicholavine@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:markryder@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:wallaceredford@warwickshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet  
 

10 March 2022 

 

On-street Parking Management - Cross-Party Working 
Group Recommendations 

 
 

 Recommendation(s) 
 

That Cabinet endorses the recommendations made by the Cross-Party Working 
Group in sections 2 and 3 and authorises the Strategic Director for Communities to 
propose and, if no objections are received, to make variations to the on-street 
parking orders pursuant to sections 45 and 46 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984 giving effect to the changes to the residents’ and guesthouses’ permit structure 
and charges recommended by the Working Group. 

   

 
 

1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1 In April 2019, Cabinet considered a number of proposed changes to on-street 

parking management. Cabinet resolved that a period of public consultation on 
the changes should take place. A wide-reaching consultation was duly carried 
out over a nine week period in summer 2019 and this provided details of the 
potential changes to on-street parking management for public feedback. 
These proposals included price rises for residents’ permits in order to make 
the permit scheme self-financing, a switch to virtual permits, increases to pay 
and display charges and changes to parking suspensions and dispensations. 
 

1.2 Feedback from the public consultation was considered at the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee (OSC) in January 2020. In response to the feedback, 
OSC recommended changes to the proposed permit price rises, that the 
switch to digital virtual permitting should proceed, and that pay and display 
charges and parking suspension and dispensation charges should increase 
as proposed.  OSC resolved that these recommendations should be taken 
forward to Cabinet. 
 

1.3 In October 2020, Cabinet discussed the proposed changes and resolved that 
the intended pay and display rises should go ahead as previously identified 
and that the switch to digital virtual permitting should also proceed. The 
agreed pay and display price rises were put on hold to recognise economic 
issues caused by the pandemic. The report also recommended that the 
proposals to increase permit prices should not proceed for the time being 
because of the economic impacts of the pandemic on businesses and 
individuals. In addition, it was recommended and resolved that a short 
duration cross-party working group be established, chaired by the Portfolio 
Holder for Transport & Planning, to make recommendations as to the future 

Page 7

Page 1 of 9Page 1 of 9



basis of permit pricing and the opportunities for parking management to 
promote environmental sustainability and the visitor and general economy.  
 

1.4 All recommendations made by the Cross-Party Working Group were majority 
made. Discussions were made over the nature of the pricing structure but it 
was agreed that the principle of the residents permit pricing, should be closer 
to breaking even. 
 

1.5 The group was comprised of five Conservative group members (including the 
Chair), one Labour group member, one Liberal Democrat group member and 
one Green group member. The group was supported by Transport & Policy, 
Legal, and the Assistant Director for Communities and Democratic Services. 
 
 

2. Recommendations of the Group 
 

Legal Context 
2.1 The County Council is required to maintain a single ring-fenced parking 

account by section 55 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 and to account 
in it for all income and expenditure in relation to designated parking places in 
the highway.  Designated parking places include places designated for use by 
residents’ and business permit holders as well as pay and display places 
available to the general public.  The courts have made it clear that it is 
permissible to set charges with the intention of recovering the cost of 
providing on-street parking places and enforcing the rules as to their use but it 
is not permissible to set charges in order to create a surplus for the purpose of 
raising revenue to spend on other purposes.  It is permissible to have a 
surplus if that is the result of setting charges in order to achieve the traffic 
management objectives set out in section 122 of the 1984 Act; what is not 
permissible is setting charges with the objective of creating or increasing a 
surplus.   
 

2.2 Section 122 is reproduced in Appendix 3 and examples of traffic management 
objectives given by the courts are:  the need to restrain competition for on-
street parking; encouraging vehicles off-street; securing an appropriate 
balance between different classes of vehicles and users; and selecting 
charges which reflect periods of high demand.  Section 122 specifically refers 
to air quality and climate change objectives would be another relevant matter 
for the purpose of section 122. 
   

2.3 Section 55 also requires that, if there is a surplus, and it is not intended to use 
it to create more off-street parking, it can only be used for public passenger 
transport services, highway improvement projects and environmental 
improvements.  

 
Residents’ Permits 

2.4 Warwickshire’s on-street parking permits (resident and visitor) currently cost 
£25 each. In the majority of residents’ permit zones three residents’ permits 
are available per household plus one visitor’s permit. An internal review had 
previously found that the cost to the County Council of running a residents’ 

Page 8

Page 2 of 9



permit scheme would be met if permits were priced at £80 each. 
Subsequently, a further, external review has calculated a figure of £63 per 
permit as a break-even value. 
 

2.5 In 2007, Cabinet agreed a set of parking policies which included the principle 
that charges for residents’ permits should be based on the costs of 
administering the scheme, with the intention being that charges should be set 
at a level which makes the permit scheme self-financing, i.e. cost neutral. 
There was also a limited increase in parking permits prices in 2015. The 
economy is now emerging from the effects of the pandemic and the reason for 
the decision to hold permit prices in October 2020 has substantially 
diminished. Therefore, in line with this policy, and to reflect the wish to see 
households which take up additional carriageway space as a result of multiple 
car ownership pay proportionately more for additional permits, after a vote, the 
group proposed the following prices:  

 First resident parking permit - £50 

 Second resident parking permit - £75 

 Visitor parking permit - £75 
 

2.6 These charges represent a considerable relative increase to the current flat 
rate charges, although the amount is broadly in line with the charges made by 
other authorities.  It is estimated that these charges will recover the costs of 
operating these permits without making a surplus on this element of the 
parking account.  However, the parking account includes a number of other 
income streams and overall the account generates an annual surplus which 
(in ordinary economic conditions) is about £2,000,000. This annual surplus is 
continually being re-invested in schemes of the kind permitted by section 55 
(see paragraph 2.3 above). 
 

2.7 When the County Council previously consulted on increases to charges for 
residents’ permits, an objector argued that it could not lawfully increase the 
charges in order to break even on the costs of the permit scheme so long as 
there is a surplus on the parking account as a whole. The objector reasoned 
that the effect of the increase would be to increase the overall surplus and this 
would be done for the purpose of raising revenue and not for a permitted 
traffic management purpose. 
 

2.8 The objector has made his case in correspondence, and we are not aware of 
any case having come before the courts on the specific argument made by 
the objector. However, the Courts have supported the general principle that 
an authority can seek to recover its costs in providing and regulating on-street 
parking places.  This support must implicitly recognise the principle that the 
beneficiary pays, i.e. that those who benefit from publicly owned and provided 
parking places may reasonably be asked to pay for that benefit rather than the 
cost falling on the general taxpayer.   
 

2.9 The highway is a public space and residents do not have legal priority over 
parking places in the roads near their homes unless the County Council 
makes and enforces a permit scheme reserving places for them.  Therefore, 
permit schemes create a benefit for residents that they would not otherwise 

Page 9

Page 3 of 9



have and that other members of the public are denied.  If the residents who 
benefit do not recompense the County Council for the cost of the permit 
scheme, the result is that (whether or not there is a surplus on the parking 
account) other members of the community are subsidising the cost of 
providing them with their parking places.  It might be thought inequitable that 
the other members of the community should pay any part of the cost of 
(effectively) depriving themselves of parking places.    
 

2.10 The County Council is not legally obliged to raise charges so that the permit 
scheme breaks even; it has a discretion and Cabinet is free to depart from the 
policy that it set in 2007.  The parking account would remain in surplus overall 
even if no charges were made for residents’ permits.  However, having regard 
to the acceptability of the principle that the beneficiary pays, it is considered 
that it would be a lawful and reasonable exercise of its discretion to increase 
the permit charges as proposed by the cross-party working group.     
 

2.11 The group also discussed the issue of capacity in residents’ parking zones. It 
was concluded that removal of the third residents’ permit would help to reduce 
demand for parking in these zones and that this should be a county-wide 
measure (see paragraph 3.1). 

 
2.12 The group agreed that parking permit prices should be reviewed every three 

years to take inflation into account over that three-year period. 
 

2.13 The group agreed to allow a 25% discount for electric vehicles (not including 
hybrid), but this would only be applicable to one electric vehicle permit per 
household, which would be the first permit normally priced at £50 and would 
only be available for three years. The proposed discount will be reviewed with 
the next inflationary permit price rise.    
 
Business Permits 

2.14 The group agreed that the County Council should continue to explore 
business permits, with the overall intention that businesses with parking 
permits should not take excess spaces away from residents. The group 
agreed that the permits should take into account the responses that had been 
received following consultation with businesses. Any proposals in relation to 
business permits would be the subject to a future report and reviewed by the 
group. 
 
Guesthouses 

2.15 The group agreed that the charge for the scratch card system being used by 
guesthouses should increase to £5 per scratch card. Parking on the highway 
removes space for local residents and the group considered that the charge 
for guesthouse visitor parking should move closer to the charge that a day’s 
on-street parking would incur in a pay and display zone. 
 

2.16 The County Council approached the borough/district councils regarding the 
potential use of their car parks and was notified that many had free spaces in 
their car parks after a certain time of day which were available to guesthouse 
visitors and other motorists alike, but there was currently no facility for 

Page 10

Page 4 of 9



guesthouse visitors to use their scratch cards in them. At this stage, it has not 
been possible to agree changes which would make night-time parking 
available via the guesthouse scheme. 
 
Pay & Display (P&D) 

2.17 The group agreed to recommend that linear charges be kept in place 
regarding Pay and Display parking charges, which allows payment and 
parking for shorter periods of time, rather than adopting a car park style 
charging regime of payment for up to one hour or up to two hours at a time. 
The group considered that payment for shorter periods of time allowed greater 
flexibility for motorists to pay for and spend short intervals parked on-street 
while quick errands were carried out.  
 

2.18 The group discussed the issue that several of the district and borough 
councils have increased or will shortly increase their car park charges. These 
parking fees will be more expensive than the County’s on-street charges. This 
is not in line with our current Local Transport Plan (LTP3) which aims to 
reduce congestion by using charging, among other options, to promote off-
street parking ahead of on-street. The group agreed to recommend that on-
street pay and display parking charges increase to match those of the 
appropriate district or borough.  
 

2.19 The group agreed that motorists should be encouraged to park off-street and 
use park and ride services to reduce congestion on roads in town centres, 
which will have the added benefit of improving town centre air quality. 
 

2.20 Any further changes to Pay & Display charges in line with these 
recommendations would need to be the subject of a further report to Cabinet. 

 
 

3. Financial Implications 
 

3.1 The group recognised that the current level of charges for residents’ permits 
does not meet the cost of administering the permit scheme in itself. The 
recommendation was to raise permit prices as follows: 

 First resident parking permit - £50 

 Second resident parking permit - £75 

 Visitor parking permit - £75 
 

3.2 Assuming the same level of permit uptake, and the same proportions of first, 
second and visitor permits, and taking into account the removal of the third 
residents’ permit, the proposed charges would result in an average permit 
cost of £60 across the entire permit uptake, which is close to the externally 
assessed value of £63 per permit. 
 

3.3 The recommended permit cost uplift would result in a revenue increase of 
approximately £450,000 annually compared to the current revenue received 
from permits. 
 

Page 11

Page 5 of 9



3.4 The group considered the price rises that the district and borough councils 
have introduced in their off-street car parks. Stratford and Warwick District 
Council car parks currently have charges which are higher than WCC on-
street charges. This goes against current LTP3 policy, which aims to 
encourage off-street parking over on-street, through a range of options which 
include charge-setting. 

 
3.5 The result of the group’s recommendation to raise WCC on-street parking 

charges to match those of district and borough car park charges in order to 
encourage off-street parking would have revenue implications for WCC. 

 
3.6 Assuming the same degree of parking uptake, on-street charges which are 

aligned with Stratford and Warwick District Council charges would see WCC 
receive an additional annual £342,000 from pay and display and RingGo on-
street parking transactions. 

 
 

4. Environmental Implications 
 

4.1 After it was clarified that a relatively small number of households in 
Warwickshire had three residents’ permits, the group voted to recommend 
removing the third residents’ parking permit cross-county, with the intention 
being to ease demand in some of the busier permit zones.  
 

4.2 Abolishing the third permit was considered appropriate in these higher 
demand areas, due to the lack of space on smaller terraced streets, 
particularly in Rugby Borough and Stratford District.  
 

4.3 The group also voted for a temporary discount for electric vehicles in line with 
the national drive to promote electric vehicle uptake and to mitigate the effects 
of climate change. A 25% discount on one electric vehicle permit per 
household was agreed. Whilst this discount will not by itself make a 
substantial difference to the economics of electric car ownership, it would be 
part of a package of measures by national and local authorities which express 
approval and encouragement for those who make this choice. This discount 
will be reviewed at the same time as the next inflationary permit price rise 
review. 
 

4.4 Reducing the number of available permits per household and providing a 
discount for electric vehicles will make a contribution towards encouraging 
other forms of transport, including active travel and more sustainable forms of 
transport, both of which will improve air quality in town centres which often 
suffer from nitrogen dioxide pollution, a component of vehicle exhaust gases. 
 

 

5. Supporting Information 
 

5.1 Evidence and reasoning supporting some of the recommendations are in the 
appendices attached for the report or were discussed/debated by the group 
after they were provided with options. 

Page 12

Page 6 of 9



 
5.2 When other local authorities were contacted regarding how much they 

charged for their resident permits, they shared the following information: 

Local Authority 1 2 3 Vis. Notes 

WCC 25 25 25 25  

Derbyshire 35 50 50 13  

Leicestershire 50 50 - 20* *Per calendar 
month 

Staffordshire 49 49 - 49  

Gloucestershire 61.80* 123.60* - 62.50 *Reduced for EVs 

Oxfordshire 65 65 130 50* * Limited annual 
visitor allowance 

Northamptonshire 35 35 - 35  

Worcester City 30 40 60 5* * For max 40 six-
hour sessions 

Birmingham 19* 38 38 75p/day *£263 in city centre 

Coventry 20* 20* 20* 20* *all under review 

Sandwell 31.80 37.10 50.90 14.80* *For max 20 six-
hour sessions 

Walsall 40 50 -   

Solihull 108* 108 108 108 *plus £185 joining 
fee 

 
In 2016, the average resident’s permit charge nationally was £64.  
 
5.3 The Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee considered the proposals 

at an informal meeting on 2 March. Members of the Committee discussed the 
principals involved and expressed their support, but they made the following 
comments: 

 

 Approximately 5% of resident permit holders hold a third permit and 
consideration should be given to how the loss of the third permit can be 
mitigated. This will include thorough communication of the alternatives 
open to them 

 Residents will be dismayed if scarce residents’ permit spaces are lost to 
business permits – but this will not be enacted in this report 

 Risk of displacement of guest house visitors needs to be looked at 
carefully 

Page 13

Page 7 of 9



 Consider using surplus funds in the parking account for EV installation in 
affected areas 

 All Members should be notified when statutory consultation begins 

 There should be an assessment of the impacts of the changes by the 
OSC 12 months after they come into effect  

 Officers should investigate whether they could supply Members with 
details of the localities in which the third permit holders live and further 
clarification on how HMOs are dealt with regarding parking permits 

 
 

6. Timescales associated with the decision and next steps 
 

6.1 Although permit charges can technically be increased by means of a notice, 
without further consultation, other proposed changes would require statutory 
advertisement and consultation.  As the precise permit charges now proposed 
have not previously been the subject of consultation, Cabinet is recommended 
to include them in the statutory consultation as part of a package rather than 
using the notice procedure.  
 

6.2 Work to implement agreed proposals would start immediately at the end of the 
call-in period following Cabinet approval. If there are objections to any 
proposed TRO variations, when advertised during the statutory consultation 
process, a report will be brought to the portfolio holder for a decision on 
whether to proceed with the variations in light of the objections. Depending on 
the complexity of the proposed changes to the TRO, the result of feedback 
from consultation and the requirement to amend signing and lining and back-
office operations, variations can take around twelve months to be 
implemented on street. 

 

6.3 The parking team will monitor the permit scheme and implement any changes 
when needed. 
 

 

Appendices 
1. Consultation with businesses on on-street parking permits for businesses 
2. EQIA Assessment 
3. Section 122 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 
 

Background Papers 
None 
 
 
 

 Name Contact Information 

Report Author Isabelle Moorhouse 
Jon Rollinson 

isabellemoorhouse@warwickshire.gov.uk, 
jonrollinson@warwickshire.gov.uk  

Assistant Director David Ayton-Hill davidayton-hill@warwickshire.gov.uk 

Strategic Director Strategic Director for 
Communities 

markryder@warwickshire.gov.uk 

Page 14

Page 8 of 9



Portfolio Holder Portfolio Holder for 
Transport and 
Planning 

wallaceredford@warwickshire.gov.uk 

 
The report was circulated to the following members prior to publication: 
 
Local Member(s): n/a 
Other members: Councillors Jonathon Chilvers, Jeff Clarke, Sarah Feeney, Dave 
Humphreys, Jan Matecki, Bhagwant Pander, Wallace Redford, Kate Rolfe and 
members of the Communities OSC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15

Page 9 of 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft Cabinet Minutes – 10 March 2022 

4. On-street Parking Management - Cross Party Working Group 

Recommendations  

Councillor Wallace Redford (Portfolio Holder for Transport and Planning) explained 
the background to the setting up of the cross party working group, noting that in 
2007, Cabinet initially agreed parking policies based on the principle that charges for 
residents permits should be based on the cost of administering the scheme and 
should not be profit making. In 2020 Cabinet took the decision to hold permit prices 
due to the impact of the pandemic but asked that a cross party working group be set 
up to review the pricing structure. Councillor Redford summarised the 
recommendations that were set out in the report, particularly noting the 
recommendation to introduce a tiered charging system for multi-car households 
which included deletion of the third residents’ permit. The group also recommended 
that charges should be reviewed every three years in line with inflation and that a 
25% discount should be available for electric vehicles, with the proviso that only one 
25% discount could be applied per household. Whilst the working group’s 
recommendations initially excluded hybrid models from the proposed discount 
scheme, Councillor Wallace indicated that his subsequent discussions had led him to 
propose that Cabinet include hybrid models in the discount scheme. Councillor 
Redford also advised that the working group had recommended that the concept of a 
business permit be explored further, that the cost of the guesthouse visitor parking 
scheme should rise as set out in the report and that pay and display charges should 
at least match those charged by the District and Borough Councils. Councillor 
Redford stressed that the residents’ permit charges should remain non-profit making 
and stated that the proposed charges would result in an average permit cost of £60 
across the entire permit uptake, which was close to the externally assessed value of 
£63 per permit. Councillor Redford noted the working group’s recommendation to 
review the impact of the increases 12 months after their implementation.  
 
Councillor Isobel Seccombe (Leader of the Council) welcomed the paper and 
thanked the working group for their efforts. She noted the comparison data on the 
charges made by other local authorities, which reflected the position of Warwickshire 
not to increase charges in 2020 as part of the drive to support post-Covid recovery in 
the town centres, and reflected on the current international situation with residents 
facing numerous financial increases and that it would be important to now reflect 
their interests in the scheme alongside those of business and the town centres. She 
suggested that Cabinet defer implementation of the pricing of on street parking only, 
not permits, for 12 months so that the impact of cost of living rises could be better 
understood. Councillor Jerry Roodhouse noted that the working group had 
undertaken a valuable task but that there was not unanimous agreement on the 
recommendations set out at paragraph 2.5 and he considered that future reports of 
this nature should be more clear on voting matters.  
 
Councillor Roodhouse highlighted that key workers, such as a domiciliary care 
worker who had been in touch with him, required their cars to undertake their jobs 
and the proposed increases would be a blow to family finances. Therefore, he 
considered that more account should be taken of the impact of the charges on key 
workers, particularly in light of the increasing cost of living. He suggested that a 

Page 17

Page 1 of 3Page 1 of 3



deferral would provide time to consider this further and obtain more data about the 
numbers involved and he suggested the introduction of a discount permit for key 
workers. Councillor Roodhouse also considered that the report did not address the 
issue of the high number of cars associated with Houses in Multiple Occupation. He 
welcomed more in-depth discussions about the affected communities to ensure that 
key workers were not driven to alternative career paths as a result of the financial 
burdens being imposed. He concluded by urging Cabinet to defer the whole 
decision.  
 
Councillor John Holland supported previous comments but raised concern about the 
vitality and prosperity of town centres. He noted that one of the aims of introducing 
resident parking schemes was as part of a recovery strategy for town centres by 
encouraging people to live in them. Opening flats above shops not only created more 
homes but had the added benefit of driving crime reduction. He noted that residents’ 
parking was a limited resource, and a balance was needed between allowing 
residents to take up space by parking all day or making space for retail customers. 
He suggested that changing the scheme was inappropriate at a time when closer 
work was needed with the District and Borough Councils and residents had been 
encouraged to live in the town centres on the basis that parking permits were 
available. He supported proposals for the decision to be delayed and welcomed 
opportunities to link the scheme to the economic activity of town centres and the 
prosperity of residents.  
 
Whilst the debate was taking place, Councillor Seccombe had entered into some 
discussion with some of her Cabinet colleagues, and she informed the meeting that if 
Cabinet chose to move forward with the recommendations, a public consultation 
would be required. She suggested that, as the cost of living was a key concern and 
that the working group had not addressed some of the issues being raised, that the 
statutory consultation be launched on the proposals which would allow Cabinet time 
to consider those particular areas. In any event, she considered that Cabinet was 
keen to defer the implementation due to the rising cost of living which would give 
further time to receive feedback on the impact on key workers and agree the 
timescale that Cabinet wanted to take forward on the implementation.  
 
Councillor Peter Butlin noted the impact that the international situation was having 
and expressed the view that the focus of the report was parking habits and the 
proposed pricing structure was a part of influencing those habits. However, he 
echoed the view that it was important to be mindful of those who could not afford an 
increase but still needed a car to conduct their job and he felt that more investigation 
needed to take place on this issue and supported consultation for that to take place.  
 
Councillor Margaret Bell, also supported a consultation, noting the impact that the 
proposals would have in North Warwickshire where civil parking enforcement was 
being introduced and she welcomed the proposal to enter the consultation with 
further consideration of timescales.  
 
Councillor Heather Timms highlighted that the charging infrastructure for electric 
vehicles was not present on the streets where the permits were being proposed and 
more joined up consideration of policies was required going forward.  
 

Page 18

Page 2 of 3



Councillor Wallace Redford agreed with the proposals above and in response to 
Councillor Roodhouse’s earlier comments, he also noted that it was not unusual for 
working groups to reach a majority decision and stated that this had been reflected in 
the report.  
 

Councillor Seccombe clarified the recommendations before the Cabinet and it was 

resolved:  

That Cabinet 1. Endorses the recommendations made by the Cross-Party Working 

Group in sections 2 and 3 of the report, but with the discount for electric vehicles 

extended to hybrid vehicles, and authorises the Strategic Director for Communities to 

advertise variations to the on-street parking orders pursuant to sections 45 and 46 of 

the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 giving effect to the changes to the residents’ 

and guesthouses’ permit structure and charges so recommended;  

2. Requests a further report following statutory consultation advising on the issues 

raised in the debate, any objections or comments received, any proposed 

modifications, and on an appropriate timescale for implementation of any variations, 

including the proposal to defer implementation for 12 months. 

Page 19

Page 3 of 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Call-In pro-forma Jan 2021 

 

CALL-IN REQUEST Please state your name Which Committee do you 
Chair? 

Request by Chair of 
relevant Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Councillor   
 

 

Request by other 
Councillors 

1.Councillor Sarah Feeney 
 

2.Councillor John Holland 
 

3. Councillor Barbara Brown 
 

4. Councillor Sarah Millar 
 

Decision maker (please state Cabinet or member or name and title of 
officer)  

Date of Decision 

Wallace Redford  

 

 

Relevant Decision (please identify the particular decision that is being called in) 
 

On-street Parking Management - Cross Party Working Group Recommendations 

 

Reasons for Call-in (please give nature of concerns) 
 

That the report does not clearly breakdown how the cost can be £63 per resident.  This is 
particularly confusing because officers are suggesting that enforcement is not part of the £63 
despite this being part of the report.  The financial data has not been shared and it seems 
impossible that the scheme costs £850,000 to administer. 
 
The report suggests a decrease in price for electric vehicles but many residents cannot legally 
put in electric charging points. 
 
The increase in pricing takes no account of the residents ability to pay – this ignores our policies 
on tackling social inequality. 
 
That there are insufficient spaces for residents in some divisions to park in and residents feel 
that they are not getting the service they pay for.  A full parking survey needs to take place. 
 
The report gives no consideration to streets opting out of the parking zone. 
 
The electronic system will be particularly difficult for those with visitors to operate. 
 

Office Use Only – To be completed by Democratic Services in consultation with the AD 
Governance and Policy 

Date Request Received Is the request valid? (If not please give reason for invalidity) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21

Page 1 of 1Page 1 of 1



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 On-street Parking Management - Cross Party Working Group Recommendations
	On-street Parking Management - Task Finish Group Recommendations_v5
	On-Street Parking Draft Cabinet Minutes 100322
	Call-in Parking decision


